
Yale Valley Library District 
Regular Meeting 

May 13, 2021           6:00PM 

Location:  Virtual Meeting 
 
Virtual Meeting:  meet.google.com/zuw-qzbk-meb  (copy & paste this address into your browser) 
 
PIN: 284 461 063# 
                                 
OR 

Dial:  1 857-285-3617    PIN: 284 461 063# 
 

 
AGENDA 

Public Meeting 

1. Call to Order 6:00 pm 
2. Roll Call of those present Information 
3. Agenda Approval  Action 
4. Introductions & Welcomes / Chair Announcements  Information 
5. Consent Agenda Action 

a. Minutes Approval: April 8, 2021 
b. Approval of building project bills: Reviewed by Chris Conroy  

6. Financial Report: Carrie Greenwood Information 
a. Architect Bill Review 

7. Building Project Information 
a. Project Update: Jay McCuistion 
b. Building Signs 
c. Landcaping 
d. Opening Plans 
e. Staffing 
f. Fencing 

8. COVID-19 Update for Yale: Amelia Shelley Information 
9. Branch Manager Report: Jennifer Hauan Information 
10. Citizen Comments 
11. Board Comments 
12. Adjournment 



Yale Valley Library District 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

April 8, 2021 
Location: Virtual Meeting 

 
Attendees: 
YVLD Board of Trustees:  Eric Reese, Tina Moir, Chris Conroy, Bob Appling, Kathi Wheeler 
FVRL:  Amelia Shelley, Carrie Greenwood, Jennifer Hauan, Jay McCuistion 
Guests:  Cynthia McAllister, Mariah Reese 

1. Call to Order:  Reese called the meeting to order at 6:01 P.M. 

2. Roll Call of those present 

3. Agenda Approval:  Wheeler moved to approve the April 8 agenda.  Conroy seconded the 
motion.  The motion was approved by each trustee. 

4. Introductions & Welcomes / Chair Announcements:  Reese reminded trustees not to use 
“reply all” when responding to email communications regarding board business.  He, also, 
noted that the trailer is finally gone from the library property.   

5. Consent Agenda: 

a. Minutes Approval, March 11, 2021:  Wheeler moved to approve the March 11 minutes.  
Moir seconded the motion.  The motion was approved by each trustee. 

b. Approval of building project bills, reviewed by Kathi Wheeler:  Wheeler stated that 
there is too much information sent with the bills that doesn’t pertain to Yale, and that it 
takes too much time to review everything.  Appling concurred; both asked if there is a 
way to just send what is pertinent to Yale.  Shelley and Greenwood both responded 
that is just the way the system works.  In addition, Wheeler stated that she did not 
receive the bills until Wednesday and that’s not enough time to review them. 

Wheeler asked about why we were just now receiving bills for Johansson Architecture 
for May 2020.  Greenwood responded that the bills are transmitted electronically and 
sometimes they get lost in the transmission.   Wheeler further questioned why Yale was 
being charged $1740 for Architectural Design in this May billing when no charges for 
this service have been paid since Feb 2020 because they exceeded the contract limit.  
Shelley said that they would review the Johansson contract and payments. 

Wheeler, also, noted that the invoice amount of $2285.11 was for multiple companies, 
and that one of the bills was for internet service which is an operating expense, not a 
capital expense.  She pointed out that the address showing for Yale Library on the 
internet bill is not our new address, but the Yale School address.  She asked that this be 



corrected to make sure the library is being billed for its internet, not the internet for 
Yale School. 

Conroy moved to approve payment of the invoice dated 4-6-2021 in the amount of 
$116,761.96, removing the amount for Johansson Architecture until that invoice 
amount can be confirmed.  Wheeler seconded the motion.  The motion was approved 
by each trustee.    

6. Financial Report:  Greenwood presented the March 2021 Financial Statement.  Greenwood 
reported that she met with their CPA and all the amounts on the financial statements have 
been confirmed.  Greenwood asked if the board would like to receive a monthly report 
detailing operating expenses once the library is operating.  The board said it would. 

7. Building Project Update:   

a. Project Update:  McCuistion reported the building is about 95% complete; the inside 
signage still needs to be done, then there’s the final inspection and an occupancy rate 
will be calculated. 

b. Building Signs:  Shelley asked whether no trespassing signs should have Yale Valley 
Library or FVRL property on them.  All trustees agreed the signs should say Yale Valley.  
Shelley said the board should decide if they want a dedication plaque on the building; 
and a plaque listing donors for the inside needs to be created.  Wheeler said that one of 
the Yale Friends volunteered some time ago to help with the design of the donor 
plaque.  Wheeler asked that this person be included in this work. 

c. Landscaping:  McCuistion said that time is not on our side in getting the landscaping 
done before the summer heat arrives.  The board was in agreement that they don’t 
want a rushed landscape design implemented that will then have to be re-done at a 
later date.  McCuistion proposed that Pacific Tech grade the site, which will include 
bringing in fill material to level everything out; and then hydroseed the whole area to 
grass.  Native landscaping can be done when the weather is more favorable.  Conroy 
suggested that the north side of the building could possibly be planted to native plants 
now since it doesn’t receive full direct sun.  The board agreed to McCuistion’s proposal. 

d. Survey:  Wheeler thanked McCuistion for all the compassionate work he put in to 
getting the squatters off library property. 

e. Fencing:  McCuistion advised the board to be thinking about what kind of fencing to 
place along the property line to keep squatters off.  He suggested that Woodland 
School District could provide input on the fencing. 

Further building updates:  There has been a problem with the water supply to the library 
the last few weeks.  Hauan reported that the school district is waiting for parts to fix the 
water pump.  The pump was running continuously, so Yale School personnel were manually 



shutting it off when no one was in the school, and only turning it on again when someone 
returned to the school.  Unfortunately, this meant that Yale Library didn’t have enough 
water to flush the toilets.  The problem should be resolved as soon as the parts for the 
pump are received and installed. 

Shelley reported on the marketing plans for Yale using Facebook, Instagram, and the library 
community newsletter.  The newsletter will highlight Yale Library, and will be mailed to the 
Yale Library service area.  Mariah Reese suggested using the platform “Discord” to reach 
more young people.  Press releases will be issued to the press.  Shelley urged the board to 
decide on a Grand Opening date.  Ridgefield has set their Grand Opening date for July 9.  It 
will be mostly an outside event with small groups of people allowed to tour inside.  Hauan 
would like the Grand Opening on June 5 so that the current collection in the library will still 
be mostly intact.  Wheeler stated she would like to send personal letters of invitation to 
the special people who helped to create Yale Library.      

8. COVID-19 Update for Yale:  Shelley expects libraries to be in Phase 4 by mid-June. 

9. Branch Manager Report:  Hauan reported that beginning April 12, there will be in-person 
service at all branches (except Yale).  People will need to sign up for limited 30 minute 
appointments.  When the 30 minutes are up, the patrons leave the building, library 
personnel perform a 15 minute clean-up, and then the next batch of appointments are 
allowed in the building. 

Hauan reported that staffing positions and hours for Yale have been determined.  The staff 
positions will be a Public Service Assistant working for 15 hours at Yale, and a Supervisor 
working 15 hours at Yale and 25 hours at Yacolt.  As soon as the building occupancy rate for 
Yale has been determined, there will be 15 hours of staff service per week.  Hours will be 
9:00 am to 12:30 pm on Tuesday, 10:00 am to 7:00 pm on Thursday, and 9:00 am to 12:30 
pm on Saturday.  Until staff is hired for Yale, Hauan and Lu Andreta Aspon from Woodland 
Library will staff Yale. 

10. Citizen Comments:  Mariah Reese praised everyone for a good job, and said that everyone 
is so excited.   

11. Board Comments:  Wheeler reported that the first piece of art, a bench made by Bill Foss, 
has been moved into the library. 

12. Adjournment:  Wheeler moved to adjourn the meeting.  Appling seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned at 7:46 P.M. 

 

______________________________________ _______________________ 

YVLD Board Chair      Date  















sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



WOLie 
business 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY 

1007 E MILL PLAIN BLVD 
VANCOUVER, WA 98663-3504 
Account PIN: 003157 

Business Name: 
Statement Date: 
Account Number: 
Payment Due Date: 
Invoice Number: 

Page 1 of 8 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 
04/01/2021 

1 04/23/2021 

103957301-0008745 

Reach Wave Business IMPORTANT MESSAGES 

Website: wavebusiness.com 

Telephone: 1-888-202-9820

For a complete list of payment lc)cations please visit: 

wavehome.com/contact 

PREVIOUS CHARGES 

Previous Balance 
Payments Received 
Balance Forward 

CURRENT CHARGES 

Network Services 
Taxes, Surcharges & Fees 
Total Current Charges 

Total Amount Due: 

6,876.49 
-6,876.49 CR

0.00 

6,731.00 
58.84 

6,789,84 

$6,789.84 

To avoid a late fee, please ensure the total amount due is received by 
the date listed on the statement. 

F�ECE!VED

APR O 5 2021

F.V.R.L A.cimin Services

Connect With Us On Social Media! 

Follow Us on Twitter 

Llkou,o, , •O ·· Followu,o, 

?""'..-···si, ij •• . .'�;� n •fa·· W"'· �-
()·1 ... (i [7"'�-, ::= · .. f.-fj/
,, :· �:1.:··.:,._�{ ��:;; ·. 

'"=� ... -., ="""' 

_,,,,,� --�-"'"'"'"""'""'"..,."" , "'"""�
•=;• ,, _ _,_......._= V ,=--,� 

-.,..,. ...... _..,,,,__,..,,.. ... �-•=> 

·� .,, ..... � �· . - ---::-::-:: ·- -= .,,_,, -

The WaveDlvislon Holdings, LLC, RCN Telecom Services, LLC, and Grande 
Communications Networks, LLC family of companies will donate a total of 
$100,0DDto Feeding America. 

Please detach and return below portion with your payment 

ti 



Page 3 of 8 

WCIJe Business Name: FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

�
Statement Date: 04/01/2021 

business Account Number: 3301-1039573 01 
Payment Due Date: 04/23/2021 

Multi-Location Activity 

Location Previous Payments Current One-Time Taxes.Fees Total Minutes Usage Amount 
Balance Charges Charges & Surcharges Amount 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301 1039573 01 $6,876.49 -$6,876.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.0 $0.00 
1007 E MILL PLAIN BLVD 
VANCOUVER, WA 98663-3504 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301-1031579 01 $0.00 $0.00 $795.00 $0.00 $0.00 $795.00 0.0 $0.00 
131 W BURGEN ST 
GOLDENDALE, WA 98620-9544 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301-1031618-01 $0.00 $0.00 $430.00 $0.00 $0.00 $430.00 0.0 $0.00 214 CBD MALL ST 
NORTH BONNEVILLE, WA 
98639 4664 

ORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301-1031645 01 
$0.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 0.0 $0.00 1007 E MILL PLAIN BLVD 

SAWTOOTH 
YANCOUVER, WA 98663-3504 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301 1031660-01 $0.00 $0.00 $795.00 $0.00 $0.00 $795.00 0.0 $0.00 
77 NE WAUNA AVE 
WHITE SALMON, WA 98672-1850 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301-1035620-01 $0.00 $0.00 $795.00 $0.00 $0.00 $795.00 0.0 $0.00 
120 NW VANCOUVER AVE 
STEVENSON, WA 98648 6446 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301-1052814-01 $0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 0.0 $0.00 
901 C ST 
VANCOUVER, WA 98660 3218 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301-1052816-01 $0.00 $0.00 $825.00 $0.00 $0.00 $825.00 0.0 $0.00 
105 E YACOLT RD 
YACOLT, WA 98675 5527 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

LIBRARY 

3301 1220178 01 $0.00 $0.00 $591.00 
11842 LEWIS RIVER RD 

$0.00 $58.84 $649.84 0.0 $0.00 

ARIEL, WA 98603-9743 

Total $6,876.49 -$6,876.49 $6,731.00 $0.00 $58.84 $6,789.84 0.0 $0.00 

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight





sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight





sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight





sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight





sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight

sbretherton
Highlight



0 $984,417
0 $15,685
0 $538,393

Cash Balance April 30, 2021 $461,710

Yale Valley Library District
For the Month Ending April 30, 2021 (With Year-to-Date Totals)

Statement of Cash

December 31, 2020 Ending Cash Balance
Year-to-date Revenue Received
Year-to-date Expenditures



C:\Users\sbretherton\Downloads\04-21 Yale Valley Library FS

0311.10  $      119,626  $         11,776  $        13,577 11.35%
119,626             11,776            13,577 11.35%

317.2 Leasehold Excise Tax 0 0 0 0.00%
                             Total Other Taxes 0 0 0 0.00%

0335.02           35,000                     -                     87 0.25%
0335.02                100                     -                     51 51.00%
335.02                   -                       -                      -   0.00%

          35,100                     -                   138 0.39%

0361.11             7,500                  275              1,971 26.28%
367-10 Non-Governmental Contributions 2500                    -   0.00%
367-10 Grant Revenue             5,000                    -   0.00%

1369.90                250                    -   0.00%
          15,250                  275              1,971 12.93%

 $      169,976  $         12,051  $        15,685 9.23%

Transfer from Reserves 560,024$      -$                -$              0.00%

Total Revenue and Reserves 730,000$      12,051 15,685 2.15%

 2021 Budget  Expenses

 Expenses 
Year-to-Date 

Totals  

Year to Date 
Annual Budget 

Percentage

0          120,000                  736                 736 0.61%
572.41 Professional Services-Fundraising/Architect           10,000                     -                   576 5.76%

0 Capital Outlay          600,000           116,025          537,080 89.51%
 $      730,000           116,762          538,393 73.75%

        (522,707)
0          984,417 

Ending Cash          461,710 

Non-Capital Reserve 299,006         
Capital Reserve 162,704         
Total 461,710         

Expenses

Net Cash Activity 
Jan. 1, 2021 Cash with County Treasurer

Description

572.62
Grand Total Expense:

Other Services / Charges
572.41 Professional Services

Yale Valley Library District
For the Month Ending April 30, 2021 (With Year-to-Date Totals)

Revenue

 2021 Budget 
Description

Year -to - Date 
Annual Budget 

Percent
 April 2021  
Revenues 

 All Revenue 
Received thru 

April 2021 

DNR - Other Revenue
State Capital Grant

Total Revenue:

Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Miscellaneous

Total Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts

Miscellaneous
Investment Interest

Total Property Taxes

Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts

Property Taxes
Property Tax Collections - Yale Valley District

DNR - Timber Revenue

Other Taxes



Schedule of Reserves

Non Cash Activity
Grant ran Through Fort Vancouver 

Regional Libraries

State of Washington Grant $291,000.00 Grant Award Ran Through FVRL's Books

Non Capital Reserve Beginning Balance 01/01/2021 $286,166 

Property Tax Collections (Revenue)                                           13,577 

Other Taxes (Revenue)                                                  -   

Professional Expenses (Expenses)                                              (736)          (31,264)
                 58 

Non Capital Reserve Ending Balance 3/31/2021 $299,006 

Capital Reserve Beginning Balance 01/01/2021 $698,251 

Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts (Revenue)                                                138 

Miscellaneous (Revenue)                                             1,971 

Professional Services Architects (Expenses)                                              (576)
           (2,526)

Capital Out lay (Expenses)                                       (537,080)
       (155,194)

Capital Reserve Ending Balance 3/31/2021 $162,704 

Total Non Capital and Capital Reserves $461,710 
$102,073.52 Grant Remaining applied to expenses for November booked in December

-$237,768.30 November Billing Offset
-$5,428.46 December Billing Offset

-$141,123.24 Transferred On 01/11/2021

Yale Valley Library District

For the Month Ending March 31, 2021 (With Year-to-Date Totals)



1 
 

Yale Valley Library District 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES BY-LAWS 

Draft (amended June 10, 2021) 

ARTICLE I POWERS, PURPOSE, AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

Section 1.1 Name: The name of the municipal corporation duly established pursuant 
to Chapter 27.12 of the Revised Code of the State of Washington shall 
be Yale Valley Library District, hereinafter referred to as the District.  

 
Section 1.2 Legal Basis: By and in the corporate name, the District shall have and 

exercise all powers, functions, rights and privileges now and hereafter 
given or granted to, and hereafter imposed upon municipal corporations 
of the same class, by the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Washington, and shall have and exercise all other powers, functions, 
rights and privileges usually exercised by, or which are incidental to, or 
inherent in, municipal corporations of like character and degree. 

 
Section 1.3 Purpose: The Board exercises the authority and assumes the 

responsibility delegated to it by Chapter 27.12 RCW for the provision of 
free public library service to the residents of Yale Precinct in Cowlitz 
County. 

 
ARTICLE II GOVERNING BOARD, BOARD COMPOSITION: 
 
Section 2.1 Board Composition: The governing body of Yale Valley Library District 

shall be a Board of Trustees, hereinafter referred to as the Board, which 
shall consist of five members, appointed by the Board of Commissioners 
of Cowlitz County Washington. Trustees must be residents of the District 
at the time of appointment. 

 
Section 2.2 Term: One Trustee shall be appointed annually to serve a five year term. 

No Trustee may serve more than two consecutive terms. 
 
Section 2.3 Vacancies: Vacancies shall be filled for unexpired terms by the Board of 

Cowlitz County Commissioners. A Trustee appointed to fill a vacancy 
shall serve the remainder of the term of the Trustee replaced. 

 
Section 2.4 Compensation: A Trustee shall not receive a salary or other 

compensation for services as a Trustee, but necessary expenses 
actually incurred shall be paid from District funds. 



2 
 

Section 2.5 Removal: A Trustee may be removed for just cause by the Cowlitz 
County Commissioners after a public hearing upon a written complaint 
stating the grounds for removal, which complaint, with a notice of the 
time and place of the hearing, shall have been served upon the Trustee 
at least fifteen days before the hearing. 

 
ARTICLE III OFFICERS: 
 
Section 3.1 Election: The Board shall elect from its members a Chair, Vice-Chair, 

Secretary, and Treasurer, who shall be voting members at its regular 
June meeting. These officers shall serve a one-year term, July through 
June following their election. Officers may serve for more than one 
consecutive term. 

 
Section 3.2 Duties: 
 A.  The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board; authorize 

special meetings; appoint committees; execute authorized documents; 
and perform all other duties associated with that office.  The Chair shall 
act as spokesperson for the Board and act as its representative with 
other organizations and activities unless another representative shall 
otherwise be authorized by the Board; provided however the Chair may 
delegate to any Trustee these duties and such person shall make no 
statements that will obligate or commit the District except pursuant to 
prior authorization of the Board. 

 B.  The Vice-Chair, in the event of the Chair’s absence or inability to act, 
shall assume the Chair’s duties. 

 C.  The Secretary shall insure that a true and accurate record is 
maintained of all meetings of the Board, and in the absence of the Chair 
and Vice-Chair, shall preside at a meeting of the Board. 

 D.  The Treasurer shall review monthly invoices and operating 
expenses, and shall advise the Board on payment of these invoices. 

 
Section 3.3 Vacancies: Vacancies in any office shall be filled at the next regular 

meeting of the Board.  Any officer elected shall fill the entire unexpired 
term. 

 
ARTICLE IV MEETINGS: 
 
Section 4.1 Regular Meetings: Monthly meetings shall be held on a day and time 

established by the Board.  Meetings shall be held at a location specified 
by the Chair.  A meeting schedule for the new year will be presented by 
the Chair at the last regular meeting of the preceding year. 



3 
 

Section 4.2 Regular Meeting Changes: The regular meeting date and/or time may be 
changed to another specified date and/or time by the Chair due to 
anticipated or actual absence of a quorum of the Board.  Meetings held 
on the changed date shall constitute a regular meeting of the Board and 
all regular business may be transacted at the meeting 

 
Section 4.3 Special Meetings: Special meetings may be called at any time by the 

Chair or by a majority of the whole Board, for the transaction of only that 
business stated in the Notice of Special Meeting. 

 
Section 4.4 Emergency Meetings: Emergency meetings may be called as provided 

for in Chapter 42.30.070 RCW. 
 
Section 4.5 Quorum & Voting: A majority of all members of the Board shall constitute 

a quorum for the transaction of business. A majority of those present is 
necessary to take action on any item coming before the Board.  

 
Section 4.6 Public Participation at Meetings: Members of the public may make 

presentations or comments to the Board at the time specified on the 
published agenda. Discussion or comment by the public at any other 
point in the meeting shall be permitted at the discretion of the Chair. 

  
Section 4.7 Board Acting as a Body: The Board shall act as a body in making its 

decisions and announcing them. No Trustee shall speak or act for the 
Board without prior authorization of the Board, except as otherwise 
provided for in these By-laws. 

 
Section 4.8 Records of Board Meetings: The proceedings of Board meetings shall be 

recorded in minutes, maintained in the Administrative Office of the 
District, and a physical copy kept in the YVLD notebooks. The minutes  

 shall consist primarily of a record of the action taken.  Minutes of each 
meeting shall be forwarded to all Trustees prior to the next regular 
meeting for their reference and correction. At the next regular meeting, 
the Board shall consider the minutes for adoption or necessary 
corrections. 

 
Section 4.9 Absences: It is the intention of the Board to maintain full representation 

of the District in all deliberations. Therefore, regular attendance of 
Trustees at meetings is encouraged. If unable to attend a meeting, each 
Trustee is responsible for notifying the Chair in advance of the pending 
absence. 

 



4 
 

Section 4.10 Open Public Meetings Act: All Board meetings are governed by the 
provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW. 

 
ARTICLE V GENERAL: 
 
Section 5.1 Amendments: These By-laws may be revised or amended at any regular 

or special meeting of the Board upon approval of three-fifths of its total 
membership, provided that Trustees receive copies of the proposed 
change(s) at least one week prior to that meeting. 

 
Section 5.2 Legal: Should any article or section of these By-laws be in conflict with 

the laws of the State of Washington, the balance of these By-laws shall 
remain in effect.  The article or section held invalid shall be amended as 
required by law in accordance with Article V, Section 5.1 of these By-
laws. 

 
 
 
 
Approved and adopted: _________________________________ (date) 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
  
 



1 
 

Yale Valley Library District 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES BY-LAWS 

(amended June 10, 2021) 

ARTICLE I POWERS, PURPOSE, AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

Section 1.1 Name: The name of the municipal corporation duly established pursuant 
to Chapter 27.12 of the Revised Code of the State of Washington shall 
be Yale Valley Library District, hereinafter referred to as the District.  

 
Section 1.2 Legal Basis: By and in the corporate name, the District shall have and 

exercise all powers, functions, rights and privileges now and hereafter 
given or granted to, and hereafter imposed upon municipal corporations 
of the same class, by the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Washington, and shall have and exercise all other powers, functions, 
rights and privileges usually exercised by, or which are incidental to, or 
inherent in, municipal corporations of like character and degree. 

 
Section 1.3 Purpose: The Board exercises the authority and assumes the 

responsibility delegated to it by Chapter 27.12 RCW for the provision of 
free public library service to the residents of Yale Precinct in Cowlitz 
County. 

 
ARTICLE II GOVERNING BOARD, BOARD COMPOSITION: 
 
Section 2.1 Board Composition: The governing body of Yale Valley Library District 

shall be a Board of Trustees, hereinafter referred to as the Board, which 
shall consist of five members, appointed by the Board of Commissioners 
of Cowlitz County Washington. Trustees must be residents of the District 
at the time of appointment. 

 
Section 2.2 Term: One Trustee shall be appointed annually to serve a five year term. 

No Trustee may serve more than two consecutive terms. 
 
Section 2.3 Vacancies: Vacancies shall be filled for unexpired terms by the Board of 

Cowlitz County Commissioners. A Trustee appointed to fill a vacancy 
shall serve the remainder of the term of the Trustee replaced. 

 
Section 2.4 Compensation: A Trustee shall not receive a salary or other 

compensation for services as a Trustee, but necessary expenses 
actually incurred shall be paid from District funds. 



2 
 

 
Section 2.5 Removal: A Trustee may be removed for just cause by the Cowlitz 

County Commissioners after a public hearing upon a written complaint 
stating the grounds for removal, which complaint, with a notice of the 
time and place of the hearing, shall have been served upon the Trustee 
at least fifteen days before the hearing. 

 
ARTICLE III OFFICERS: 
 
Section 3.1 Election: The Board shall elect from its members a Chair, Vice-Chair, 

and Secretary-Treasurer, and Treasurer, who shall be voting members 
at its regular September June meeting. These officers shall serve a one-
year term, September through October 1 July through June of the year 
following their election ,or until successors are duly elected. Officers may 
serve for more than one consecutive term. 

 
Section 3.2 Duties of the Chair and Vice-Chair: 
 A.  The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board; plan each 

meeting agenda with the Secretary-Treasurer; authorize special 
meetings; appoint committees; serving as an ex-officio member of each; 
execute authorized documents; and perform all other duties associated 
with that office.  The Chair shall act as spokesperson for the Board and 
act as its representative with other organizations and activities unless 
another representative shall otherwise be authorized by the Board; 
provided however the Chair may delegate to any Trustee these duties 
and such person shall make no statements that will obligate or commit 
the District except pursuant to prior authorization of the Board. 

 B.  The Vice-Chair, in the event of the Chair’s absence or inability to act, 
the Vice-Chair shall assume the Chair’s duties. 

Section 3.3 C.  The Secretary-Treasurer shall insure that a true and accurate record 
is maintained of all meetings of the Board, and in the absence of the 
Chair and Vice-Chair, shall preside at a meeting of the Board. 

 D.  The Treasurer shall review monthly invoices and operating 
expenses, and shall advise the Board on payment of these invoices. 

 
Section 3.3 Vacancies: Vacancies in either any office shall be filled at the next 

regular meeting of the Board.  Any officer elected shall fill the entire 
unexpired term. 

  



3 
 

ARTICLE IV DUTIES OF THE BOARD MEETINGS: 
 
Section 4.1 Regular Meetings: Regular Monthly meetings shall be held on a day and 

time established by a resolution of the Board.  If the day falls on a 
holiday, such regular meeting shall be held on the next business day, 
unless otherwise determined by the Chair.  Meetings shall be held at a 
location specified by the Chair.  A meeting schedule for the new year will 
be presented by the Chair at the last regular meeting of the preceding 
year to be adopted and published by the Board. 

 
Section 4.2 Regular Meeting Changes: The regular meeting date and/or time may be 

changed to another specified date and/or time by the Chair due to 
anticipated or actual absence of a quorum of the Board.  Meetings held 
on the changed date shall constitute a regular meeting of the Board and 
all regular business may be transacted at the meeting.  If a quorum is 
not present for a meeting, the presiding officer may continue the meeting 
to another time and place specified in the order of continuance. 

 
Section 4.3 Special Meetings: Special meetings may be called at any time by the 

Chair or by a majority of the whole Board, for the transaction of only that 
business stated in the Notice of Special Meeting. 

 
Section 4.4 Emergency Meetings: Emergency meetings may be called as provided 

for in Chapter RCW 42.30.070 RCW. 
 
Section 4.5 Meeting Notification:     
                        A.  Written notification of any regular meeting shall be delivered to each 

Trustee prior to the meeting time.  Written notification of a special 
meeting, meeting continuation, or change of meeting place or time shall 
be delivered to each Trustee at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the 
meeting time. A Trustee may waive the notification requirement.   

 B.  A local newspaper of general circulation and other newspapers which 
have filed with the District a written request to be notified of regular or 
special meetings shall be notified of such meetings by a written notice 
delivered at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting time. The 
notice shall be written by the Chair or his/her designee.  

   Quorum & Voting: A majority of all members of the Board shall constitute 
a quorum for the transaction of business. A majority of those present is 
necessary to take action on any item coming before the Board. The 
Chair or Vice-Chair may introduce, vote upon, move, or second action 
before the Board. 

 



4 
 

Section 5.7  Agenda: The agenda for each Board meeting shall be determined by the 
Chair in consultation with the Secretary. Board members may make 
suggestions for future Agendas at a regular meeting or by contacting the 
Chair.   

 A.  The written agenda may be delivered to each Trustee, with pertinent 
information and documents related to the items of business.   

 B.  With no opposition from Trustees, the Chair may deviate from the 
order of business on the published meeting agenda and may add items 
to the agenda.   

 C.  Items of business not included in a meeting agenda may be added to 
the agenda at a regular meeting upon a majority vote of Trustees 
present.   

 
Section 4.6 Public Participation at Meetings:  
 A.  Requests by members of the public to place an item of business on 

an agenda that require action must be made to the Chair at least one 
week prior to a regular meeting and may be included on the agenda at 
the discretion of the Chair.   

 B.  Members of the public may make presentations or comments to the 
Board at the time specified on the published agenda. The Board may, at 
its discretion and with a majority vote, place an issue brought forth 
during a public comment period on the agenda of a specified future 
meeting. No action will be taken at the meeting during which the issue is 
brought forth. Discussion or comment by the public at any other point in 
the meeting shall be permitted at the discretion of the Chair. 

 C.  At the discretion of the Chair or with a majority vote of the full Board, 
a public hearing on a specific issue may be held. The Board shall adopt 
and make available procedures governing the public hearing process. 

 
Section 4.7 Parliamentary Procedure: Unless otherwise governed by the provisions 

of these By-laws or laws of the State of Washington, Roberts Rules of 
Order (latest revised edition) shall govern the conduct of all Board 
meetings. The Chair or his/her designee shall serve as Parliamentarian. 

 Board Acting as a Body: The Board shall act as a body in making its 
decisions and announcing them. No Trustee shall speak or act for the 
Board without prior authorization of the Board, except as otherwise 
provided for in these By-laws. 

 
Section 4.8 Records of Board Meetings: The proceedings of Board meetings shall be 

recorded in minutes, maintained in the Administrative Office of the 
District, and a physical copy kept in the YVLD notebooks. The minutes  

  



5 
 

 shall consist primarily of a record of the action taken.  Minutes of each 
meeting shall be forwarded to all Trustees prior to the next regular 
meeting for their reference and correction. At the next regular meeting, 
the Board shall consider the minutes for adoption or necessary 
corrections. 

 
Section 4.9 Absences: It is the intention of the Board to maintain full representation 

of the District in all deliberations. Therefore, regular attendance of 
Trustees at meetings is encouraged. If unable to attend a meeting, each 
Trustee is responsible for notifying the Chair in advance of the pending 
absence. 

 
Section 4.10 Open Public Meetings Act: All Board meetings are governed by the 

provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW. 
 
ARTICLE V GENERAL: 
 
Section 5.1 Amendments: These By-laws may be revised or amended at any regular 

or special meeting of the Board upon approval of three-fifths of its total 
membership, provided that Trustees receive copies of the proposed 
change(s) at least one week prior to that meeting. 

 
Section 5.2 Legal: Should any article or section of these By-laws be in conflict with 

the laws of the State of Washington, the balance of these By-laws shall 
remain in effect.  The article or section held invalid shall be amended as 
required by law in accordance with Article V, Section 5.1 of these By-
laws. 

 
 
 
Approved and adopted: _________________________________ (date) 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________ 
  














	YVLD Board Agenda 5-13-21
	Regular Meeting

	Minutes, 2021-04-08
	Yale Bills - April 2021 Compilation
	0 - Yale Invoice - April 2021 Bills
	1 -  Pacific_Tech_Construction_112284
	2 - FVRL_2021_APR_GB_Manchester_112125
	3 - FVRL_2021_APR_Office_Products_NW_112141
	4 - FVRL_2021_APR_Wave_112152_Redacted
	5a - FVRL_2021_APR_Home_Depot_112048
	5b - FVRL_2021_APR_VISA_Kami_Getsfrid_112100
	5c - FVRL_2021_APR_Shur_Way_Building_Center_112292
	5d - FVRL_2021_APR_Office_Depot_112139
	5e - FVRL_2021_APR_Office_Depot_112283
	FVRL_2021_APR_04-28-2021-225450.pdf


	04-21 Yale Valley Library FS
	cash balance
	revenue and expenses
	Reserve Detail

	YVLD 2021 Revised By-Laws Draft 1
	YVLD 2021 Revised By-Laws Draft Red-lined
	YVLD By-Laws 7-21-2016 Approved



